
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
TWENTY-FOURTH SESSION 

Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 74: 
Budget estimates for the financial year 1970 (continued) 

Page 

United Nations building at Santiago, Chile . . . . . . . . . . 219 

Agenda item 77: 
Appointments to fill vacancies m the membership of 

subsidiary bodies of the General Assembly (continued): 
(b) Committee on Contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 221 

Chairman: Mr. David SILVEIRA DA MOTA 
(Brazil). 

AGENDA ITEM 74 

Budget estimates for the financial year 1970 (continued) 
(A/7606, A/7608, A/7710, A/7726, A/7749, A/C.5/ 
1230, A/C.5/1231 and Corr.1 and 2, A/C.5/1233, A/C.5/ 
1234, A/C.5/1245, A/C.5/1248, A/C.5/1249, A/C.5/ 
1253, A/C.5/1254, A/C.5/l.990, A/C.5/L.993, A/C.5/ 
L.1002) 

United Nations building at Santiago, Chile 
(A/1606, A/7608, A/1749, A!C.5/1249) 

1. Mr. BANNIER (Chairman of the Advisory Committee 
on Administrative and Budgetary Questions) said that in his 
report {A/C.S /1249) on the United Nations building at 
Santiago, Chile, the Secretary-General dealt with two 
different but related matters-the completion of work on 
the existing building and planning for future accommoda
tion needs at Santiago. The Advisory Committee's com
ments on those two matters were set forth in document 
A/7749. 

2. With regard to the programme for improving the 
building, expenditure of $659,000 had been approved by 
the General Assembly for 1969 and, in the budget estimates 
for the financial year 1970 (A/7606), the Secretary-General 
had requested appropriation of $738,500 to complete the 
programme. In its main report (A/7608) on the budget 
estimates the Advisory Committee had concurred in that 
request, subject to any observations it might make later. 
Although the Secretary-General had indicated that the 
programme was proceeding on schedule, the Advisory 
Committee understood that a substantial proportion of the 
funds appropriated for 1969 would remain unencumbered 
at the end of the year. It concurred in the Secretary-Gene
ral's request that the unencumbered balance should be 
credited to the account for the United Nations building at 
Santiago to meet commitments in 1970. As for tile estimate 

219 

AFTH COMMITTEE, 1328th 
MEETING 

Friday, 14 November 1969, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

NEW YORK 

of requirements under the budget for 1970, the Secretary
General had not modified his original request for $738,500. 
While on the subject of work on the existing building, he 
wished to draw attention to the Advisory Committee's 
comments in paragraph 5 of its report (A/7749) concerning 
the steps taken by the Secretary-General to strengthen 
planning and administrative and financial controls. 

3. Regarding future accommodation needs at Santiago, it 
would be recalled that at its twenty-third session the 
General Assembly had authorized the Secretary-General to 
prepare plans, specifications and cost estimates for· a 
satellite building at Santiago, having in mind also the needs 
of other organizations in the United Nations family with 
local offices in that city. The Secretary-General had decided 
to defer that preparatory work and to seek further advice 
from the General Assembly, as a survey of the needs of the 
various organizations showed that their accommodation in 
common premises would necessitate the construction of a 
far larger and costlier building than the one which had been 
envisaged. The Secretary-General had now put forward 
three possible alternatives. The Advisory Committee gave 
its preference to the second alternative, that is, the 
construction of a satellite building to meet the current and 
some future needs of ECLA and the Latin American 
Institute for Economic and Social Planning, thereby leaving 
aside for the time being the idea of common premises. It 
accordingly recommended that the Secretary-General 
should be authorized to proceed with the development of 
plans and cost estimates for such a building and that the 
appropriation of $41,000 which had been approved for that 
purpose for 1969 and which would remain unspent in the 
current year should be credited as a separate item to the 
Santiago building account for use in 1970. 

4. In making that recommendation, the Advisory Com
mittee endorsed the Secretary-General's suggestion that the 
interested organizations, in conjunction with the United 
Nations, might set up a committee at Santiago to examine 
the advantages and disadvantages of the construction of a 
common building and modalities for its financing. The 
Advisory Committee further suggested that in preparing 
plans and cost estimates for the satellite building, the 
Secretary-General should give consideration to all available 
sites. 

5. The adoption of the Advisory Committee's recommen
dations would not necessitate the provision of funds over 
and above the aggregate of what had been appropriated for 
1969 and what was already included in the initial estimates 
for 1970. 

6. Mr. TARDOS (Hungary) expressed his appreciation to 
the Secretary-General for his efforts to complete the 
construction of the building at Santiago, but noted with 

A/C.5/SR.1328 



220 General Assembly - Twenty-fourth Session - Fifth Committee 

regret that the work would take much longer than had been 
envisaged at the twenty-third session. Nevertheless, his 
delegation supported the recommendations of the Advisory 
Committee. 

7. On the question of plans for the construction of new 
premises, he felt it was very important to avoid another 
interminable undertaking carried out in fits and starts. The 
office space requirements for the existing building had been 
underestimated and the same mistake might well be 
repeated in connexion with the satellite building. According 
to the figures given in the Secretary-General's report, by the 
time that building was completed there would not be 
enough office space for ECLA. Judging from the rate at 
which the existing building had been constructed, that was 
a very real possibility. 

8. His delegation agreed with the Advisory Committee 
that it was unlikely that those specialized agencies that 
were now housed in rent-free premises would wish to share 
common premises with the United Nations. A discussion 
with them on the subject did not therefore appear to be 
promising. His delegation would like to know whether there 
were any expiration dates in the agreements concluded with 
the organizations housed in the Santiago building on a 
rent-free basis, whether the United Nations had the right to 
cancel the existing arrangement and whether it was obliged 
to provide the agencies concerned with the office space 
they would need until 1985. He hoped that the terms of 
the agreements would enable the United Nations to find a 
just and economical solution to the problem. 

9. The new satellite building was not to be completed 
before 1974 or 1975. The space requirement of the 
organization now occupying 3,000 sq. m. of office space 
would then be 3,700 sq. m., which represented roughly the 
whole of the office space of the new building. Moreover, it 
was estimated that in 1985 those organizations would need 
about 5,000 sq.m. of office space, more than the new 
building could provide. 

10. In the circumstances, his delegation would suggest that 
the satellite building should have an area of 5,000 sq. m. of 
office space, instead of 4;000, which would not substan
tially increase the architect's fee and would provide a 
solution to the housing problem of the organizations now 
accommodated in the ECLA building. In addition, the 
organizations concerned should be informed that the 
United Nations would terminate the existing housing 
arrangement on the completion of the new satellite 
building. Lastly, the committee to be established at 
Santiago, as suggested by the Secretary-General, should 
discuss the modalities of financing the construction of the 
new building, and not its feasibility. 

11. The course of action his delegation suggested would 
satisfy ECLA 's current needs for office space while leaving 
room for some future expansion, and at the same time it 
would solve the housing problem of certain United Nations 
organizations. In addition, it would represent a sound 
budgetary policy for all the organizations concerned and 
put an end to an unfair situation. 

12. Mr. GARRIDO (Philippines) expressed his delegation's 
support for the recommendations made by the Advisory 

Committee in its report (A/7749). He was particularly 
interested in the recommendation that the Secretary-Ge
neral set up a committee at Santiago to examine the 
advantages and disadvantages of the construction of a 
common building. He hoped that the committee would 
pursue the objectives laid down by the General Assembly in 
1950 in its resolution 411 (V) concerning common services, 
"particularly in respect of regional and branch offices of 
the United Nations aP.d specialized agencies, with a view to 
achieving greater efficiency and economy". The consolida
tion of the regional and national offices of the specialized 
agencies and the units of the United Nations in common 
premises would bring about better co-ordination of activi
ties and increase efficiency. He recalled in that connexion 
that in the Enlarged Committee for Programme and 
Co-ordination the delegation of Malta had submitted a 
paperi on common premises; he hoped that the Secretary
General would present comments on the paper, which the 
Fifth Committee should find useful. His own Government 
had taken steps to provide common premises for the offices 
of the Asian Development Bank and units of the United 
Nations. His delegation was pleased by the position taken 
by the Secretary-General with regard to the construction of 
common premises at Santiago and hoped that the proposed 
committee would take his views into account in its study of 
the question. 

13. His delegation would express its views on the modali
ties of financing a common building in due course. 

14. Mr. PALAMARCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) concurred with the Hungarian representative. 
There was no reason why plans for the construction of a 
new building should not be prepared, although it was for 
the General Assembly to decide whether the project should 
be undertaken. His delegation reserved the right to speak 
again when the question of the actual construction of the 
new building was considered. 

15. Mr. VAUGHAN (Assistant Secretary-General for Ge
neral Services) said that the Secretariat shared the Hunga
rian delegation's regret that construction had been delayed. 
However, the delay was due to the care with which the 
Secretary-General had safeguarded United Nations interests. 
As the Secretary-General had indicated in his report 
(A/C.5/1249), an allocation of $41,000 had been included 
in the budget for 1969 for the preparation of plans and 
specifications and related costs for a satellite building at 
Santiago. A study of the requirements of the United 
Nations organizations with offices at Santiago had estab
lished that more floor space would be required in the new 
building than had been estimated-with the result that 
construction costs would be higher-and the Secretary
General had therefore decided not to use the credit of 
$41 ,000 and to seek the General Assembly's advice. 

16. As far as he was aware, there were no expiration dates 
in the agreements under which offices were made available 
rent-free to the specialized agencies at Santiago and the 
parties to those agreements could certainly cancel them at 
any time. He pointed out that the agencies were not housed 
in the United Nations building at Santiago and that the 
United Nations was in no way obligated to provide the 

1 See document E/4748, annex V. 



1328th meeting-- 14 November 1969 221 

specialized agencies with the office space they needed; each 
agency decided for itself how it could best meet its 
accommodation needs. With regard to the suggestion that 
the gross space of the satellite building should be 5,000 
sq. m. instead of 4,000, it was for the Committee to take a 
decision in the light of the site chosen. In accordance with 
the Advisory Committee's recommendation, the Secretary
General would give consideration to all available sites. 

17. He pointed out to the representative of the Philippines 
that, for some considerable time, the Secretary-General had 
been submitting regular reports to the Advisory Committee 
on the question of common premises for the regional and 
local offices of the United Nations and the specialized 
agencies. 

18. Lastly, he confirmed, as the Soviet Union representa
tive had pointed out, that it was for the General Assembly 
to take a decision with regard to the construction of the 
satellite building. The amount to be credited to the 
Santiago building account would be used for the prepara
tion of plans and specifications. 

19. Mr. MEYER PICON (Mexico) asked whether the 
figures given by the Hungarian representative in proposing 
the construction of a building with a gross space of 5,000 
sq. m. were exact figures and whether it was correct that 
the additional costs involved in preparing plans for the 
construction of such a building were negligible. If so, his 
delegation would also favour the construction of a building 
with a gross space of 5,000 sq. m. instead of 4,000 sq. m. 

20. Mr. ZIEHL (United States of America) supported the 
Secretary-General's proposals, as endorsed by the Advisory 
Committee, and expressed gratification concerning the 
unaccustomed attitude of being forthcoming on a budget
ary matter adopted by the Hungarian delegation. As the 
Advisory Committee had indicated in its report, the site 
originally chosen for a possible satellite structure directly 
behind the existing structure could not accommodate a 
building of more than 4,000 sq. m. The Committee had 
added that, in its opinion, the proposed study should not 
be focused solely on that site to the exclusion of alternative 
locations nearby which could accommodate a larger build
ing, or several buildings, now or at a future date. In 
deciding to have plans drawn up for the construction of a 
building with a gross area of 4,000 sq. m., therefore, the 
Secretary-General had by no means excluded the possibility 
of constructing one or several other buildings at a future 
date. In the Secretary-General's opinion, 2,205 sq. m. of 
additional office space would be required to meet current 
needs. In the circumstances, a building with a gross space of 
4,000 sq. m. should be sufficient for the time being. That 
figure was without regard to the needs of other organiza
tions but, if those needs were taken into account at the 
current stage, there was a danger that the execution of the 
project would be considerably delayed. For those reasons
which were clearly set forth in the documents before the 
Committee-his delegation would vote for the Secretary
General's proposals. 

21. Mr. VAUGHAN (Assistant Secretary-General for Ge
neral Services) said that the United States representative 
had answered the Mexican representative's questions; there 
was nothing to add. 

22. Mr. BANNIER (Chairman of the Advisory Committee 
on Administrative and Budgetary Questions) said that FAO 
occupied offices at Santiago which the Chilean Government 
had made available to it rent-free, that the ILO rented the 
office space which it needed on the outside and that 
UNESCO shared premises, which it found inadequate, with 
another organization. WHO had no regional office at 
Santiago. 

23. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the Committee 
should take note of the reports of the Secretary-General 
(A/C.S/1249) and the Advisory Committee (A/7749) and 
adopt the Advisory Committee's recommendations con
tained in paragraph 16 of its report. 

It was so decided. 

AGENDA ITEM 71 

Appointments to fill vacancies in the membership of 
subsidiary bodies of the General Assembly (continued):* 

(b) Committee on Contributions (A/7572, A/C.5/1255, 
A/C.5/1256) 

24. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to hold an 
election to fill vacancies in the membership of the 
Committee on Contributions. 

25. The Committee would first hold an election to fill the 
vacancy resulting from the resignation as of 14 October 
1969 of Mr. Raymond T. Bowman (United States of 
America). The candidate elected would fill that vacancy 
until the end of Mr. Bowman's term of office, namely until 
31 December 1970. The Government of the United States 
of America had proposed the appointment of Mr. Seymour 
M. Finger (see A/C.S/1256). 

26. Subject to the provisions of rule 160 of the rules of 
procedure of the General Assembly, members of the Fifth 
Committee were free to vote for the person of their choice, 
whether or not that person had been officially nominated. 
Members of the Committee on Contributions were ap
pointed in their individual capacity: the name of one 
person should therefore be written on the ballot papers. 

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. McGough (Argen
tina) and Mr. Bennet (New Zealand) acted as tellers. 

A vote was taken by secret ballot. 

Number of ballot papers: 
Invalid ballots: 
Number of valid ballots: 
Abstentions: 
Number of members voting: 
Required majority: 

Number of votes obtained: 

68 
2 

66 
4 

62 
32 

Mr. Finger . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58 
Three other persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

* Resumed from the 1309th meeting. 



222 General Assembly - Twenty-fourth Session - Fifth Committee 

Mr. Seymour M. Finger (United States of America}, 
having obtained the required majority, the Committee 
recommended his appointment as a member of the Com
mittee on Contributions for the period ending 31 December 
1970. 

The Committee decided that the Rapporteur should 
report on the matter directly to the General Assembly. 

27. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to hold a 
second election, namely, to fill four vacancies in the 
membership of the Committee on Contributions which 
would arise when the terms of office of Mr. Ali, Mr. Fer
nandini, Mr. Viaud and Mr. Zakharov expired on 31 De
cember 1969 (see A/7572). As stated in the note by the 
Secretary-General (A/C.5/1255) their respective Govern
ments had proposed Mr. Ali, Mr. Viaud and Mr. Zakharov 
for re-election and Mr. Meyer Picon (Mexico) for election 
to the Committee on Contributions for a three-year term of 
office beginning on 1 January 1970. The Committee would 
conduct the election in the same way as it had conducted 
the previous election, except that the names of four persons 
should be written on the ballot papers. 

At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr. Refshal (Norway) 
and Mr. Bieda (Turkey) acted as tellers. 

A vote was taken by secret ballot. 

Number of ballot papers: 
Invalid ballots: 
Number of valid ballots: 
Abstentions: 
Number of members voting: 
Required majon·ty: 

Number of votes obtained: 

75 
0 

75 
0 

75 
38 

Mr. Ali ........................... 71 
Mr. Meyer Picon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71 
Mr. Viaud . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 70 
Mr. Zakharov . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65 
Two other persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 

Mr. Amjad Ali (Pakistan), Mr. Santiago Meyer Picon 
(Mexico), Mr. Maurice Viaud (France) and Mr. A. V. 
Zakharov (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) having 
obtained the required majority, the Committee recom
mended their appointment as members of the Committee 
on Contributions for a three-year term of office beginning 
on 1 January 19 70. 

The Committee decided that the Rapporteur should 
report on the matter directly to the General Assembly. 

The meeting rose at 12.5 p.m. 


